

# REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS RFP 2021-007

Bylaw Truck New ½ Tonne Pick-up

E-mailed Proposals will be received at the office of: Carolyn Mushata, Corporate Officer District of Sooke <u>CMushata@sooke.ca</u>

up until the Closing Time of 3:00 p.m., local time, March 12, 2021.

Note: Faxed or mailed RFP submissions will not be accepted.

All inquiries related to this Request for Proposals shall be submitted by email to the attention of:

Carolyn Mushata, Corporate Officer <u>CMushata@sooke.ca</u>

# Contents

1.	SC	OPE OF WORK	1
2.	RESOURCES		
3.	IN	STRUCTIONS TO PROPONENTS	1
4.	CC	OMMUNICATIONS AND ENQUIRIES	1
	4.1	ADDENDA	1
	4.2	EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SITE	2
	4.3	ERROR IN PROPOSAL	2
	4.4	WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS	2
	4.5	OWNERSHIP OF PROPOSALS	2
	4.6	OPENING OF PROPOSALS	2
5.	FE	ES	2
6.	PA	YMENT	2
7.	E۷	ALUATION AND SELECTION CRITERIA	3
8.	NE	GOTIATION	3
9.	GE	NERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS	3
	9.1	RIGHT OF THE DISTRICT TO CANCEL THE RFP PROCESS	3
	9.2	ACCEPTANCE AND REJECTION OF PROPOSALS	3
	9.3	NO CLAIM FOR COMPENSATION	4
	9.4	NO CONTRACT	4
	9.5	CONFLICT OF INTEREST	4
	9.6	BUSINESS LICENCE	4
	9.7	SOLICITATION OF COUNCIL MEMBERS AND DISTRICT STAFF	5
	9.8	CONFIDENTIALITY AND FREEDOM OF INFORMATION	5
	9.9	CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT	5
	9.10	SUB-CONSULTING	5
	9.11	INSURANCE	5
	9.12	SAFETY	6
	9.13	CONTRACTOR IS "PRIME CONTRACTOR	6
	9.14	TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE	7
	9.15	GOVERNING LAW	7
	9.16	LOCAL PREFERENCE	7
	9.17	LITIGATION CLAUSE	7
10	).	CLOSING DATE FOR PROPOSALS	7

# **APPENDICES**

Appendix A – Mandatory Vehicle Requirements Appendix B – Proposal Form

# 1. SCOPE OF WORK

The District of Sooke is seeking proposals for the supply and delivery of one (1) new ½ tonne single cab pick-up truck for the District's bylaw department. Based on a review of responses to this RFP, the District of Sooke intends to select a Proponent who would then be invited to enter into a contract for provision of the services described in this RFP.

# 2. RESOURCES

Appendix A details the mandatory vehicle requirements, options available from the proponent at additional cost, and other information required for the evaluation. Schedule B is the proposal form. Both documents must be submitted by the Closing Date.

# 3. INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPONENTS

Only complete submissions will be accepted. Partial submissions will not be considered. Submissions may be revised by written amendment, delivered to the location set out for delivery of submissions before the Closing Date.

Should the Proponent consider additional services and materials appropriate, it should be recommended in their proposal. The Proponent is to cost these additional items separately.

Proponents should submit a completed Schedule A and B via email to <u>cmushata@sooke.ca</u>.

The Proposal shall include a copy of Schedule B signed by a person authorized to legally bind the Proponent to the statements made in the Response to this RFP.

## 4. COMMUNICATIONS AND ENQUIRIES

All enquiries regarding this RFP are to be directed by email, to the following person prior to the specified closing date/time. Information obtained from any other source is not official and should not be relied upon. Enquiries and responses will be recorded and may be distributed to all Proponents at the District of Sooke's option.

Carolyn Mushata Email: <u>cmushata@sooke.ca</u> Telephone: 250-642-1607

#### 4.1 ADDENDA

The District will post an electronic copy of the written addendum on the District of Sooke's website at <a href="http://sooke.ca/municipal-hall/documents-forms/tenders-and-rfps/">http://sooke.ca/municipal-hall/documents-forms/tenders-and-rfps/</a>, on CivicInfo and on BC Bid if the District determines that an amendment is required to this RFP. Each addendum will be incorporated into and become part of the RFP. No amendment of any kind to the RFP is effective unless it is contained in a written addendum issued by the District.

#### 4.2 EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SITE

Proponents will be deemed to have carefully examined the RFP, including all attachments, Schedules, the Contract and the Site (as applicable) prior to preparing and submitting a Proposal with respect to any and all facts with may influence the Proposal.

#### 4.3 ERROR IN PROPOSAL

No proposal shall be altered, amended, or withdrawn **AFTER** the closing date and time of the RFP. Negligence on the part of the Proponent in preparing the Proposal confers no right for withdrawal of the Proposal after it has been opened.

While the District has made considerable efforts to ensure an accurate representation of information in each respective RFP, the information contained in the RFP is supplied solely as a guideline for the Proponent and is not necessarily comprehensive or exhaustive. Nothing in a District RFP is intended to relieve the Proponent from forming their own opinions and conclusions in respect of the matters addressed in the RFP.

#### 4.4 WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS

The Proponent may withdraw their Proposal at any time **PRIOR TO** the Proposal Closing Time by submitting a written withdrawal letter to the District's Corporate Officer at <u>cmushata@sooke.ca</u> and the Proposal will be returned.

### 4.5 OWNERSHIP OF PROPOSALS

All Proposals, including attachments and any documentation, submitted to and accepted by the District in response to this RFP become the property of the District.

#### 4.6 OPENING OF PROPOSALS

Proposals will **NOT** be opened in public

## 5. FEES

The fee schedule for the work is to be submitted along with the work program. The rates and total fees for each consultant must be identified in the fee schedule.

Any anticipated expenses are to be identified in the proposal. The fee proposed will be considered the maximum upset fee by the District, and any expenditures beyond that amount will require approval by the District and will only be considered for increases in the scope of work proposed by or agreed to in advance by the District.

# 6. PAYMENT

Payment for the work will be made upon completion of the project, satisfactory to the District.

# 7. EVALUATION AND SELECTION CRITERIA

The RFP is used to select a Proponent, who will have demonstrated a capability to commence and complete the work described within the time frame specified and according to the following criteria, provided that this list is not exhaustive, or set out in any particular order of priority.

Proposals shall be evaluated to determine the best value offered to the District using the following criteria:

- The respondent must have or be able to have, prior to commencement of the project, a valid and current District of Sooke Business Licence.
- The Respondent's business and technical reputation and capabilities and the experience of its personnel.
- The Respondent's strategy to deliver the Project on or ahead of schedule, and experience and reputation in delivering similar projects on or ahead of schedule.
- Methodology and approach (understanding of service objectives and outcomes)
- Resources and pricing structure (staff, equipment)
- The Respondent's financial capability to undertake the Project.
- Proposal is clear and logical and shows value for money to the District and demonstrates capabilities that make his/her services uniquely qualified to provide the requested services including any innovative approaches successfully used with other clients.

# 8. NEGOTIATION

By submitting a Proposal, a Proponent accepts that a contract may be concluded upon notification by the District with the Proponent. The District reserves the right to negotiate. If the parties, after having bargained in good faith, are unable to conclude a contract, the District and the Proponent will be released without penalty or further obligations other than any surviving obligations regarding confidentiality and the District may, at its discretion, contact the Proponent of the next best rated Proposal and attempt to conclude a contract with it, and so on until a contract is concluded.

# 9. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

## 9.1 RIGHT OF THE DISTRICT TO CANCEL THE RFP PROCESS

The District is not bound to select a preferred Proponent or accept any Proposal and reserves the right in its sole discretion to postpone or cancel this RFP at any time for any reason whatsoever in accordance with the District's judgement of its best interest and to proceed with the Services in some other manner separate from this RFP process.

## 9.2 ACCEPTANCE AND REJECTION OF PROPOSALS

This RFP does not commit the District, in any way, to select the preferred Proponent, or to proceed to negotiations for a contract, or to award any contract.

The District reserves the right to:

- i. Accept a Proposal which is not the lowest bid;
- ii. Reject any and all Proposals, including without limitation the lowest priced Proposal, even if the lowest priced Proposal conforms in all aspects with the RFP;
- iii. Reject any Proposal at any time prior to execution of an Agreement;
- iv. Assess the ability of the Proponent to perform the contract and may reject any Proposal

where, in the District's sole estimation, the personnel and/or resources of the Proponent are insufficient;

- v. Amend or revise the RFP by Addenda up to the specified closing date and time;
- vi. Reduce the Scope of Services required within the RFP and negotiate the price to reflect such change after aware of an Agreement; and
- vii. Award an Agreement to the Proponent other than the one with the most points, if, in its sole determination, another Proposal is determined to the Best Value to the District, taking into consideration the price and evaluation criteria of the RFP.

Under no circumstances shall the District be obligated to award an Agreement solely on the basis of proposed price.

The District may accept or waive a minor or inconsequential irregularity, or where applicable to do so, the District may, as a condition of acceptance of the Proposal, request a Proponent to correct a minor or inconsequential irregularity with no change in the Proposal.

The determination of what is or is not a minor or inconsequential irregularity, the determination of whether to accept, waive, or require correction of an irregularity and the final determination of the validity, will be at the sole discretion of the District of Sooke.

## 9.3 NO CLAIM FOR COMPENSATION

Proponents are solely responsible for their own expenses in preparing and submitting Proposals, and for any meetings, negotiations, or discussions with the District or its representatives and consultants, relating to or arising from this RFP. The District and its representatives, agents, consultants and advisors will not be liable to any Proponent for any claims, whether for costs, expense, losses or damages, or loss of anticipated profits, or for any other matter whatsoever, incurred by the Proponent in preparing and submitting a Proposal, or participating in negotiations for a Contract, or other activity related to or arising out of this RFP. Proponents agree that by participating in the RFP process, and or submitting a Proposal, they have no claim for compensation.

#### 9.4 NO CONTRACT

By submitting a Proposal and participating in the process as outlined in this RFP, Proponents expressly agree that no contract of any kind, if formed under, or arises from this RFP, exists prior to the signing of a formal written Contract.

## 9.5 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Proponents shall disclose in their Proposals any actual or potential Conflict of Interest and existing business relationships it may have with the District, its elected officials, appointed officials or employees.

### 9.6 BUSINESS LICENCE

The successful Proponent will be required to hold a valid District of Sooke business license for the duration of the project. The Proponent will be required to produce a copy of the business license on or before commencement of the project.

#### 9.7 SOLICITATION OF COUNCIL MEMBERS AND DISTRICT STAFF

Proponents and their agents will not contact any member of the District Council or District Staff with respect to this RFP, other than the District Representative named in this document or authorized by the Corporate Officer, at any time.

#### 9.8 CONFIDENTIALITY AND FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

The District will retain all Proposals and they will not be returned to the Proponent except for any unopened Financial Proposals. All submissions will be held in confidence by the District. The District is bound by the *Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act* (British Columbia) and all documents submitted to the District will be subject to provisions of this legislation.

All of the information contained within the RFP, including supplementary information provided electronically, is for the exclusive use of the Consultant team for the RFP preparation purposes only and is not to be made publicly available in any manner. The Consultant Team shall not discuss this project with any member of the public at any time, for any reason whatsoever, without the prior written approval of the District of Sooke.

### 9.9 CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

A Consulting Services Agreement will be required between the District of Sooke and the successful proponent.

#### 9.10 SUB-CONSULTING

Using a Sub-Consultant is acceptable provided the Sub-Consultant is clearly identified in the Proposal. This includes a joint submission by two Proponents having no formal corporate links. However, in this case, one of these Proponents must be prepared to take overall responsibility for successful performance of the Contract and this should be clearly defined in the Proposal.

Sub-consulting to any firm or individual who's current or past corporate or other interests may, in the District's opinion; give rise to a conflict of interest in connection with this project will not be permitted. This includes, but is not limited to, any firm or individual involved in the preparation of this Request for Proposal.

Where applicable, the names of approved Sub-Consultants listed in the Proposal will be included in the Contract. No additional Sub-Consultants will be added or other changes made, to the list in the Contract without written consent of the District's Director of Development Services.

#### 9.11 INSURANCE

Except as may be otherwise expressly approved by the District in writing, the Proponent will, without limiting its obligations or liabilities herein and at its own expense, provide and maintain the following insurances with insurers licensed in British Columbia and in forms and amounts acceptable to the District:

i. Professional Liability Insurance (Errors and Omissions) coverage of a minimum of \$500,000 per occurrence, \$1,000,000 aggregate.

- ii. Comprehensive Liability Insurance with not less than \$2,000,000 coverage per occurrence, together with a Standard Non-Owned Automobile Liability. The District must be named as an additional insured on this policy and the policy shall contain a cross-liability clause.
- iii. The successful consultant must also provide the District with a certificate issued by the insurer(s) as evidence of the coverage required on or before commencement of the project.
- iv. Each policy of insurance required under this agreement shall be maintained during the continuance of this agreement and shall not be capable of cancellation unless 30 days' notice is first given to the District.
- v. The successful consultant must ensure that every sub-consultant provides and maintains insurance substantially in accordance with the requirements of this agreement. The successful consultant shall be as fully responsible to the District for acts and omissions of sub-consultants and of persons employed directly or indirectly by them as for acts and omissions of persons directly employed by the consultant.

The foregoing insurance shall be primary and not require the sharing of any loss by any insurer of the District.

The successful Proponent shall provide the District with evidence of all required insurance prior to the commencement of the Services. When requested by the District, the Proponent shall provide certified copies of required policies.

#### 9.12 SAFETY

The successful Proponent shall:

- i. Hold a valid WorkSafeBC registration number for the duration of the project.
- ii. Produce a copy of a Worksafe BC registration number on or before commencement of the project.
- iii. Comply with Occupational Health and Safety Regulations.
- iv. In the event of a multiple employer workplace (i.e. Field work requiring survey, geotechnical investigation, traffic control etc.) be the designated prime contractor, and fulfil the prime contractor's responsibilities as defined in:
  - a) WorkSafeBC Occupational Health and Safety Regulation, Notice of Project, Section 20.2, and Coordination of Multiple Employer Workplaces, Section 20.3;
  - b) Workers Compensation Act (RSBC 1996), Coordination at multiple- employer workplaces, Section 118, Subsections (1) & (2);
  - c) General Requirements; Section 3.10 Worksafe BC.

#### 9.13 CONTRACTOR IS "PRIME CONTRACTOR

The Contractor to the Contract (if awarded) will be designated and assumes the responsibility as the **Prime Contractor** per WorkSafe BC OH&S Regulations, Section 20.2 **Notice of Project** and 20.3 **Coordination of Multiple-Employer Workplaces**, Subsections (1) and (2). The Proponent should also understand the general duties of the Owner as defined in the Workers' Compensation Act, Section 119 **General Duties of Owner**. The Proponent should have the necessary qualification and be willing to accept the responsibilities as **Prime Contractor** for this Contract.

#### 9.14 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE

Time is of the essence for the Contract, if awarded.

#### 9.15 GOVERNING LAW

This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the Province of British Columbia.

#### 9.16 LOCAL PREFERENCE

Preference will be given to Proponents located within the region of Sooke where quality, service, and price are equivalent. This will include any of the Proponent's proposed sub-consultants, if applicable.

#### 9.17 LITIGATION CLAUSE

The District may, in its absolute discretion, reject a Proposal submitted by a Proponent, if the Proponent, or any officer or director of the Proponent is or has been engaged either directly or indirectly through another corporation in legal action against the District, its elected or appointed officers and employees in relation to:

- i. Any other contract for works or services; or
- ii. Any matter arising from the District's exercise of its powers, duties; or functions under the Local Government Act, Community Charter or another enactment,

within five years of the date of this Request for Proposal.

In determining whether to reject a Proposal under this clause, the District will consider whether the litigation is likely to affect the Proponent's ability to work with the District, its consultants and representatives and whether the District's experience with the Proponent indicates that the District is likely to incur increased staff and legal costs in the administration of a Contract if it is awarded to the Proponent.

## **10.CLOSING DATE FOR PROPOSALS**

The closing date for proposals will be 3:00 p.m. local time, March 12, 2021. All Proposals must be clearly marked with the name and address of the Proponent and the "Request for Proposal" title. Proponents are responsible for ensuring that digital delivery occurs within the deadline. Late Proposals will not be accepted and will be returned to the Proponent unopened.

# Schedule A – Vehicle Specification List

This must be returned completed with the submission.

	Yes / No	Comments (To Be Completed by Bidder)
Description of Mandatory Requirement One (1) new ½ tonne single cab pick-		
Make		
Model and Model Year		
REQUIRED OPTIONS		
Exterior		
Single-cab with 2 doors		
6' box (minimum), no bed liner		
Fuel type: gas		
4-wheel drive		
Steps to cab & box		
Tow Hitch		
Interior		
Tilt steering		
Keyed locks to both doors		
(2 sets of keys required)		
Air conditioning		
Driver and passenger front sun visors		
Standard front & rear bumpers		
Power mirrors, locks and windows		
Vinyl or leather seats		
Front & Rear Floor Mats		
Paint and Colour Scheme:		
Single tone factory white (preferred)		
Tires		
All weather/all-season tires – tires must have the triple mountain peak and snow flake	State size:	
One (1) full size spare tire and wheel matched to vehicle tires		

OPTIONAL ACCESSORIES	Yes/No	Additional Cost (+ taxes)
Accessories and Storage (state		
cost)		
Extended Cab		
USB Audio Input		
Remote Keyless Entry System		
Cruise Control		
Heated Seats		
Sunroof		
Interior Lighting Kit		
Touchscreen Display System		
Bluetooth Capability		
AM/FM/CD/MP3		

OTHER INFORMATION FOR	
EVALUATION	
All wheel drive	
Front wheel drive	
Overall length (approx.)	
Wheel base (approx.)	
Overall length (approx.)	
Seating Capacity	
Fuel tank capacity (L)	
Fuel Economy:	
Litre/100 km City Litre/100 km Highway	
Litre/100 km Highway	
Axles and Suspensions:	
State axle ratio	
Limited slip or traction control	
Electrical System:	
Back up camera system	
Factory intermittent windshield wipers	
12V power point inside the cab	
110-volt/400 watt outlet interior	
Warranty:	
Basic	
Powertrain Warranty	

# Additional comments:

### Schedule B: Proposal Form

Proposal Submission:					
Project:	Bylaw Truck				
Project No.:	2021-007				
Date:					
Submitted by:					
	(Name of Company)				
	(Address)				
Email:		Telephone:	(	)	
Name of Bidder:					
Signature:					

Contract Price:

Having examined all matters referred to in the mandatory requirements of the Vehicle Specification List prepared by the District of Sooke, we, the undersigned, hereby offer to enter into a Contract to supply one (1) new electric or hybrid vehicle with a hatchback for the price of:

	Price (Excluding taxes)
Please provide a LUMP SUM cost	
	<pre>\$ Excluding taxes</pre>

Rates are in Canadian funds which include the supply of all the products, all labour and materials, supervision, services, construction machinery and equipment, overhead and profit, and represent the entire cost to the Owner for the completion of the Work. All applicable Federal and Provincial taxes and duties *excluding* Goods and Services Tax (GST) are included in the Rate.

We agree that if the District orders us in writing to perform extra work which is not reasonably inferable from the specifications as being part of the Work, we will perform the same and shall be paid

therefore in accordance with the terms of the General Conditions applicable to Changes and Extra Work. We agree that the District may delete from the Contract a portion or portions of the Work provided such deletion is not for the purpose of allowing someone else to perform the deleted portion during the Contract Time.

Proposed Delivery Schedule:

State date of delivery if awarded contract on March 23, 2021:

Business License:

Our District of Sooke (or Intermunicipal) Business License Number:

Notification:

If notified in writing by the District of acceptance of this Proposal within the specified acceptance period after the Proposal closing date, we shall:

- a. Supply our District of Sooke Business License Number or approved equivalent; and
- b. Enter into and execute a General Services Agreement for the Work.

Guarantees & Warranty:

State all guarantees and warranties being offered.

#### Subcontractors:

If you will be using sub-contractors for the Work please provide their business name, contact names phone numbers and aspect of the Work they will perform.

Authorization:

A person authorized to sign on behalf of the Contractor; to agree to all statements made in response to this Request for Proposal should complete and sign this section.

The enclosed Offer is submitted in response to the above-referenced Request for Proposal, with the acknowledgement and receipt of addenda \_\_\_\_\_\_ through \_\_\_\_\_. Through submission of this Offer we agree to all the terms and conditions set out in the RFP and have agreed that any inconsistent provisions in our Submission will be as if not written and do not exist. We have carefully read and examined the Request for Proposal, and we agree to holding the stated pricing for the period of indicated in the Proposal Form.

We agree to hold this offer open for acceptance by the District of Sooke for \_\_\_\_\_ days.

Signature:	Legal Name of Contractor:
Printed (Full) Name:	Address:
Title:	
Date:	
E-mail:	
Contact Phone Number(s):	